Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Board Meeting

Board Meeting - October 15, 2025 (Revised October 13,
2025)

Agenda

Consent Agenda

Special Meeting Minutes - September 17, 2025 ............rcrrrrnnnnnnnnnsn s
Regular Meeting Minutes - September 17, 2025 .........cccoovmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm————n.
Special Meeting Minutes - September 29, 2025 ............cccccceeerremrrrrreee e nnnes
AdVaNCe DiIreCltiVes ... rrc s rs e s s s s n s e n s e e s e m e s nmmn s
Central Line — Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention ............
Chemotherapy Administration and Precautions .........cccociiiciiimecccecissseesneneees
Departments that Deliver Nursing Care to Patients ..........cccccvvivimmrinnicsensnnninnes
Multidrug Resistance Organism (MDRO) Control Plan ........ccccccmmmmmmmmnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn
Prevention of Catheter- Associated Urinary Tract Infections (CAUTIS) ..............
Lippincott Procedure Manual Adoption POIICY .......cccccerriiriniiininnnnnnnnssssssssssssseeeenns

CEO Contract

(0 =@ 2070 Y} { = () A

Board Vacancy - Zone 1

Memo - Board VacanCy Zone 1 ......iiiiiiiinnnssssssssssssssssssss s s s s s s s s sssssssssssssnes

Chief Executive Officer Report
Memo - Strategic Growth: Market Survey, Master Facility Plan, and Long-Ran

Strategic GroWth ... s
Wipfli Facility and Capital Planning Presentation .........ccccccoiiiiimmninisiisensnnnninees
Memo - Community Health Needs Assessment Contract ..........cccevvvvvevenenennennnees

Chief of Staff Report

Chief of Staff Report - October 2025 ............ooo oo

Governance Committee

AdVOCACY POIICY ....ceeiiiiiiiiiiissinssssssssssssssssss s s s s s s s s s s s s s s ssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss
Civility and Code of Conduct POIICY ......ccccieiircmmmmrinnssscnsrissssssssen s sssssssssns s ssssmnnnes
Officers and Committees of the Board of Directors - Revised October 13, 202 .
Ticketing Distribution POlICY ...

... 78

.. 116

Page 1 of 149



Appendix A - Ticketing and Distribution POlICY ... 122

Memo - Radiology Services Contract Update ..........cccccmrriiiimmmninnsssmssssnsseesenennns 123
Chief Financial Officer Report
Interaction of OHCA Spending Targets and Health Plan Practices ....................... 125
CFO Report Financial Summary and Operation Insights - August 2025 .............. 127
NIHD Financial Summary August 2025 ...........cccouimmmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnes 131
NIHD KPIs FYE August 2025 ..........cccccmiiiiinsmmnnrsssssssmsnsssssssssmssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnns 134
NIHD Financial Update August 2025 ..........e s s s s s s eseenees 136
NIHD Financial Statements August 2025 .........ccooiimmmmri s 144

Chief Nursing Officer / Operating Officer Report
Memo - Radiology Services Contract Update .....ccccccciiiimmmmmecccsicsirrsecceecssseeeeeeenes 148

Page 2 of 149


http://www.tcpdf.org

Vision Statement

To be an energized, high performing advocate for the communities we
serve, our patients and our staff. The board governs with an eye on the
future of health care and its effects on the District and patient care.
The Board is committed to continuous evaluation, dedication to our
mission, and improvements as a board.

Mission
Values
* Strong Stewardship * Ethical Oversight *
*Eternal Local Access * * Integrity * Innovate Vision * Stewardship * Teamwork *

AGENDA

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING

October 15, 2025, 5:00 pm

The Board meets in person at 2957 Birch Street, Bishop, CA 93514. Members of the public will be
allowed to attend in person or via Zoom. Public comments can be made in person or via Zoom.

TO CONNECT VIA ZOOM: (A link is also available on the NIHD Website)
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/32578934847pwd=Vrgnzd FhLFICk7h6MIbfgehXlilrqm. 1#success
Meeting ID: 325 789 3484

Password: 623576

PHONE CONNECTION:
(669) 444-9171
(253) 215-8782
Meeting ID: 325 789 3484

1. Call to Order at 5:00 pm

2. Public Comment: The purpose of public comment is to allow members of the public to address the
Board of Directors. Public comments shall be received at the beginning of the meeting and are
limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, with a total time limit of thirty (30) minutes for all public
comments unless otherwise modified by the Chair. Speaking time may not be granted and/or
loaned to another individual for purposes of extending available speaking time unless
arrangements have been made in advance for a large group of speakers to have a spokesperson
speak on their behalf. Comments must be kept brief and non-repetitive. The general Public
Comment portion of the meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction of
the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda. Public comments on agenda items

should be made at the time each item is considered.

Page 3 of 149



Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting

3. Public comments on closed session items
4. Adjournment to closed session to/for:
a. Conference with Labor Negotiator
Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6
Agency Designated Representative: Northern Inyo Healthcare District Chief Human
Resources Officer
Employee Organization: AFSCME Council 57

5. Return to open session and report on any actions taken in closed session.

6. Consent Agenda — A/l matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and will be
enacted by one motion unless any member of the Board wishes to remove an item for discussion.
a. Approval of minutes for September 17, 2025, Special Board Meeting
b. Approval of minutes for September 17, 2025, Regular Board Meeting
c. Approval of minutes for September 29, 2025, Special Board Meeting

&

Approval of Policies and Procedures
1. Advance Directives
ii. Central Line — Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention
iii. Chemotherapy Administration and Precautions
iv. Departments that Deliver Nursing Care to Patients
v. Multidrug Resistance Organism (MDRO) Control Plan
vi. Prevention of Catheter- Associated Urinary Tract Infections (CAUTIs)
vii. Lippincott Procedure Manual Adoption Policy

7. New Business:
CEOQO Contract — Action Item
b. Board Member Resignation — Information Item
c. Posting of public notice to fill the Zone 1 (one) vacancy due to the resignation of Director
Barrett on September 29, 2025 in accordance with Gov’t Code 1780(d) and appointment of
an ad hoc committee — Action Item
i. Appointment of Ad Hoc Committee — Action Item

d. Finance Committee Appointment/Alternate — Action Item

Page 4 of 149



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting

e. Chief Executive Officer Report
1. Strategic Growth: Market Survey, Master Facility Plan, and Long-Range Financial
Planning - Action Item
ii. Community Health Needs Assessment - Information ltem
f. Chief of Staff Report, Sam Jeppsen MD
1. Medical Staff Initial Appointments 2025-2026 — Action Item
1. Ivan Jambor, MD (neuroradiology) — Courtesy Staff
2. John Kuipers, MD (neuroradiology) — Courtesy Staff
3. Brian Truong, MD (OB/GYN) — Courtesy Staff
4. Angel Robinson, MD (OB/GYN) — Courtesy Staff
5. David Hackley, MD (orthopedic surgery) — Courtesy Staff
il. Medical Staff Initial Appointments 2025-2026 — Proxy Credentialing — Action Item
1. Anita Kedia, MD (telecardiology/Renown) — Telemedicine Staff
iii. Staff Category Change — Action Item
1. Michael McEnany, MD (emergency medicine) — Active Staff to Courtesy
Staff
iv. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Report Information Item
g. Governance
i. Advocacy Policy — Action Item
ii. Civility and Code of Conduct Policy — Action Item
iii. Officers and Committees of the Board of Directors — Action Item
iv. Ticketing Policy — Action Item
1. Appendix A
h. Chief Medical Officer Report — Information Item
i. Chief Financial Officer
i. Interaction of OHCA Spending Targets and Health Plan Practices — Information
Item
il. Financial & Statistical Reports (Board will consider the approval of these reports)
j- Chief Nursing Officer / Operation Officer
i. Radiology Services Contract Update — Action Item

8. General Information from Board Members (Board will provide this information)

Page 5 of 149



Page, 4, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting

9. Adjournment

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to participate in a

District Board meeting, please contact the administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.

Page 6 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17 2025

Special Meeting

CALL TO ORDER

PRESENT

TELECONFERENCING

PUBLIC COMMENT ON
CLOSED SESSION ITEMS

ADJOURNMENT TO
CLOSED SESSION

RETURN TO OPEN
SESSION

ADJOURNMENT

Page 1 of 1

Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board Chair Turner called the
meeting to order at 3:39 pm.

Jean Turner, Chair

Melissa Best-Baker, Vice Chair
David Lent, Secretary

David McCoy Barrett, Treasurer
Laura Smith, Member at Large

Christian Wallis, Interim Chief Executive Officer

Andrea Mossman, Chief Financial Officer

Allison Partridge, Chief Operating Officer / Chief Nursing Officer

Alison Murray, Chief Human Resources Officer, Chief Business Development
Officer

Adam Hawkins, Chief Medical Officer

Notice has been posted, and a quorum participated from locations within the
jurisdiction.

Chair Turner reported that at this time, audience members may speak on any
items on the agenda that are within the jurisdiction of the Board.

There were no comments from the public.

Adjournment to closed session at 3:40 pm

Called back to order at 5:40 pm
Chair Turner stated there were no reportable actions from the closed session.

Adjournment at 5:41 pm.

Jean Turner
Northern Inyo Healthcare District
Chair

Attest:

David Lent
Northern Inyo Healthcare District Chair
Secretary

Page 7 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17, 2025

Regular Meeting

CALL TO ORDER

PRESENT

TELECONFERENCING

PUBLIC COMMENT

CONSENT AGENDA

Page 1 of 11

Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board Chair Turner called the
meeting to order at 5:50 pm.

Jean Turner, Chair

Melissa Best-Baker, Vice Chair
David Lent, Secretary

David McCoy Barrett, Treasurer
Laura Smith, Member at Large

Christian Wallis, Interim Chief Executive Officer

Allison Partridge, Chief Operations Officer / Chief Nursing Officer

Adam Hawkins, DO, Chief Medical Officer

Alison Murray, Chief Human Resources Officer, Chief Business Development
Officer

Andrea Mossman, Chief Financial Officer

Samantha Jeppsen, MD, Chief of Staff

Notice has been posted and a quorum participated from locations within the
jurisdiction.

Chair Turner reported that at this time, audience members may speak on any
items not on the agenda that are within the jurisdiction of the Board.

Public Comment: Dr. Rasoumoff, member of the Medical Executive
Committee, stated that he felt personally attacked and defamed by a letter from
counsel representing Dr. Loy that was posted on the District’s website as part of
the agenda materials. Dr. Rasoumoff said he believed the statements made
about him were false and retaliatory.

The Chair called attention to the Consent Agenda.

The Chair noted that Item 3B, Minutes of the August 20, 2025 Regular Board
Meeting, was revised and included in the supplemental packet. Approval of the
consent agenda would constitute adoption of the revised minutes and all other
items listed under the consent agenda.

Board Discussion:

A Board member asked for clarification on the Employee Health — Workforce
Onboarding Policy related to vaccination requirements. Staff confirmed that
employees may decline certain vaccinations by signing a declination form and
that they may choose to receive the vaccine at a later date.

Motion: Best-Baker

2"d: Smith

Roll Call Vote
Barrett - Yes
Smith - Yes
Lent - Yes
Best-Baker — Yes

Page 8 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17, 2025

Regular Meeting Page 2 of 11
Turner — Yes
Pass: 5-0
NEW BUSINESS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE Chair Turner called attention to the CEO report.
OFFICER REPORT

Clear Horizons Consulting Report Out

Interim CEO Wallis introduced representatives from Clear Horizons
Consulting, who were invited to conduct a high-level review of the District’s
financial operations and processes. The review was designed to identify
strengths and potential opportunities for revenue enhancement.

Wallis stated that consultants Rees and Johnson conducted interviews with
department leaders, reviewed financial data from the past five to ten years, and
compared NIHD’s operations with other rural and critical access hospitals.

Rees provided an overview of the team’s findings and recommendations. He
commended NIHD staff for their professionalism, attention to detail, and
alignment with organizational values. The consultants found that the District’s
financial reporting and quality metrics were well-managed and consistent with
strong operational performance.

Rees highlighted several opportunities for financial growth, including:

* Evaluating potential partnerships or service expansions to strengthen
care coordination and reimbursement opportunities.

* Enhancing existing programs to maximize eligible cost-based
reimbursements.

* Implementing a commercial rate adjustment to align with current
contract terms and market conditions.

* Reviewing cost report allocations and facility utilization to ensure
optimal reimbursement for District services.

He noted that these strategies could collectively improve federal and state
reimbursement and strengthen NIHD’s long-term financial position.

Rees also encouraged the District to continue fostering a positive culture,
stating that issues should be brought directly to those who can resolve them and
that the organization should take every opportunity to share its successes
publicly.

Public Comment: none
Board Discussion: Board members thanked Rees for the comprehensive
review and expressed appreciation for the practical recommendations. Directors

noted the value of an external perspective to validate internal financial
processes and identify new opportunities for efficiency and revenue growth.

Page 9 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17, 2025
Regular Meeting Page 3 of 11

Conflict of Interest

Interim CEO Wallis presented an informational overview of the District’s
policies and procedures related to conflict of interest. The presentation was
requested by a Board member to clarify how the District manages actual,
potential, or perceived conflicts within the workplace.

Wallis explained that the District’s policy applies to all workforce members,
including employees, contracted staff, and providers. Conflicts of interest may
occur when personal, family, or financial interests could improperly influence
professional judgment or decision-making.

Examples discussed included:

e Family members working within the same department or in direct
reporting relationships.

o Employees with secondary employers.

o Employees or family members holding ownership or financial interests
in vendors, suppliers, or competing healthcare organizations.

Wallis noted that all employees are required to complete a conflict of interest
disclosure form upon hire, annually thereafter, and whenever there is a change
in relationship status or employment circumstances. Disclosures are reviewed
by the Compliance and Ethics Committee, which includes the Chief Human
Resources Officer, Compliance Officer, and Chief Executive Officer.

The presentation outlined three categories used to assess conflicts:

e (Category A — Not significant or generally permissible.

o Category B — Potential or perceived conflict, typically managed with
disclosure and a mitigation plan.

o Category C — Actual conflict of interest requiring management action or
reassignment.

Wallis reported that approximately 30% of employees have some form of
relationship disclosure, with 70% reporting no conflict. Two employees were
identified as having Category C actual conflicts, both of which are being
managed under appropriate mitigation plans.

Public Comment: none

Board Discussion: Board members thanked Wallis for the detailed overview
and the proactive approach to transparency and compliance.

Committee Pilot
Interim CEO Wallis provided an update on the three-month pilot program for

the District’s new committee structure. He explained that the intent of the pilot

Page 10 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17, 2025
Regular Meeting Page 4 of 11

is to align committee meetings with the monthly Board cycle so that committee
recommendations can be acted upon at the regular Board meeting.

Wallis noted that implementation began in July, during peak vacation months,
which caused some scheduling challenges. He stated that the structure itself
remains sound and recommended extending the pilot for an additional three
months to allow for evaluation under regular scheduling conditions.

Public Comment: none

Board Discussion: Directors expressed support for continuing the pilot period
to ensure adequate time for assessment and adjustment.

Motion by Best-Baker: to extend the committee pilot program for an
additional three months
2"Md: [ent
Roll Call Vote
Barrett - Yes
Smith - Yes
Lent - Yes
Best-Baker — Yes
Turner — Yes
Pass: 5-0

Appointment of Committee Alternates

The Chair introduced the item regarding the appointment of Board member
alternates to standing committees. Wallis noted that the concept originated from
the committee pilot program and is intended to ensure meetings can proceed
when a regular committee member is unavailable.

Based on the preferences submitted by Directors, the proposed alternate
assignments were as follows:

e Governance Committee: Director Smith
¢ Finance Committee: Director Turner
e Quality Committee: Director Best-Baker

Public Comment: none

Board Discussion: Directors expressed support for formalizing the use of
alternates to promote meeting continuity and participation. Legal counsel
confirmed that although the item was listed as informational, the Board could
take action to approve the appointments.

Motion by Lent: to approve the appointment of alternates
2"d: Smith
Roll Call Vote

Barrett - Yes

Page 11 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17, 2025

Regular Meeting

CHIEF NURSNING
OFFICER /CHIEF
OPERATING OFFICER
REPORT

Page 5 of 11

Smith - Yes

Lent - Yes

Best-Baker — Yes

Turner — Yes
Pass: 5-0

Marketing Plan

Wallis introduced the District’s comprehensive 2025-2026 Marketing Plan,
developed under the leadership of Marketing and Public Relations Director
Barbara Laughon. The plan was created in response to a Board request for a
cohesive, year-round strategy integrating digital, print, video, and community
outreach efforts.

Laughon presented an overview of the plan’s purpose, goals, and structure. The
plan is designed to strengthen community trust, increase awareness of available
services, encourage prevention and early detection through education, and
improve internal and external communication.

Key strategies include:

e A monthly outreach framework organized by seasonal health themes
(e.g., aging well, women’s health, heart health, and family wellness).

o Integration of targeted direct mail, social media, video storytelling, and
community sponsorships.

e Expansion of internal communication tools such as staff newsletters and
Healthy Lifestyle Talks.

e Greater visibility for the NIHD Foundation, Auxiliary, and community
partners.

Laughon emphasized that the plan is a living document built to adapt as
opportunities arise. She also acknowledged the collaboration and support of the
leadership team, noting guidance from Chief Business Development Officer
Murray, as well as strong engagement from the Chiefs and Interim CEO Wallis.

Public Comment: none

Board Discussion: Board members expressed appreciation for the clarity and
depth of the plan and for Laughon’s efforts to connect NIHD’s message with
the community. Directors discussed ways to share positive patient experiences
while maintaining privacy compliance and encouraged continued use of
storytelling and digital platforms to highlight the hospital’s achievements.

Chair Turner called attention to CNO / COO Department Updates.

The Chief Nursing Officer Partridge provided an update on recent operational
progress within the Nursing Division. She reported that the pharmacy’s IV
compounding and chemotherapy rooms successfully passed all state-required

retesting earlier that day, completing the final step toward full compliance. The

Page 12 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17, 2025
Regular Meeting Page 6 of 11

data will be compiled and submitted to the state by the end of the week, and no
barriers are anticipated. The Chief Nursing Officer commended the facilities,
infection prevention, and pharmacy teams for their collaboration in achieving
this outcome.

She then introduced two presentations highlighting ongoing quality and safety
initiatives.

Advancing Stroke Care Excellence at NIHD

Director of Nursing for Outpatient Services Bates presented an overview of the
Emergency Department’s stroke program and its partnership with Savarro Tele-
Neurology. The service provides 24/7 access to board-certified neurologists
who respond within 45 seconds, enabling rapid diagnosis and treatment for
stroke patients.

Bates reported that NIHD’s average “door-to-needle” time for administering
clot-busting medication is 46.5 minutes—well above the national benchmark of
60 minutes. The program’s success has allowed more patients to remain locally
for observation rather than being transferred out of the area.

Bates announced that NIHD will enroll in the American Heart Association’s
Get With the Guidelines — Stroke program, which recognizes hospitals
achieving national standards for stroke care. NIHD intends to pursue the Gold
Achievement Award, reflecting two years of consistent performance at or above
national benchmarks.

Implementation of TeamSTEPPS Program

Director of Nursing for Inpatient Services Ott presented an overview of the
TeamSTEPPS initiative—Team Strategies and Tools to Enhance Performance
and Patient Safety. The nationally recognized program, developed by the
Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality and the Department of Defense, is
designed to strengthen teamwork, communication, leadership, and situational
awareness across clinical teams.

Ott explained that implementation will begin with super-user training in mid-
October, followed by department-level rollout in the Medical-Surgical, ICU,
and Perinatal units. The program aims to reduce clinical errors, improve
efficiency, and enhance staff satisfaction.

Public Comment: none

Board Discussion: Directors commended the nursing leadership team for
advancing high-quality care initiatives and expressed appreciation for the stroke
program’s exceptional results. Board members emphasized the importance of
sharing these positive developments with the community to highlight the

hospital’s capabilities and achievements.

CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT  Chair Turner called attention to the Chief of Staff report.

Page 13 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17, 2025

Regular Meeting

GOVERNNANCE
COMMITTEE

Page 7 of 11

Chief of Staff Jeppsen provided the monthly medical staff report and presented
recommendations for appointment and reappointment of medical staff
members.

Motion by Best-Baker: to approve Medical Staff Initial Appointments 2025-
2026
2"d: Smith
Roll Call Vote
Barrett - Yes
Smith - Yes
Lent - Yes
Best-Baker — Yes
Turner — Yes
Pass: 5-0

Motion by Best-Baker: approve Medical Staff Reappointments 2025-2026
2"Md: [ent
Roll Call Vote
Barrett - Yes
Smith - Yes
Lent - Yes
Best-Baker — Yes
Turner — Yes
Pass: 5-0

Jeppsen also reported that the Medical Staft recently approved an increase in
active member dues to support professional gatherings, collaboration
opportunities, and community engagement, including potential scholarships for
local high school students.

She noted that two new Emergency Department physicians had joined the
hospital and were receiving positive feedback from staff and patients. The
Medical Staff continues to maintain strong collaboration with the Mammoth
Orthopedic Institute and other specialty groups to improve access and
continuity of care.

Public Comment: none

Board Discussion: Directors expressed appreciation for the report and
acknowledged the positive feedback regarding new physicians and continuing
collaboration across departments.

Mission, Vision, Values

Turner reported that the Governance Committee is continuing work on several
initiatives that will be brought to the Board in the coming months. Turner noted
that the Committee had discussed the confusion surrounding multiple versions

of the District’s mission, vision, and values statements identified during the

Page 14 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17, 2025
Regular Meeting Page 8 of 11

July Board meeting. The Committee expressed willingness to develop a unified
version for review but wanted to confirm whether the full Board preferred to
work on this item collectively or have the Committee prepare a
recommendation.

Public Comment: none

Board Discussion: Board members agreed that the Governance Committee
should proceed with reviewing and recommending a unified set of mission,
vision, and values statements to bring forward for Board consideration.

No formal action was taken on this item.
FINANCE COMMITTEE Chair Turner called attention to the Finance Committee.
NIHD Financial Investment Opportunity

Interim CEO Wallis reported on the NIHD Financial Investment Opportunity,
which had been presented to the Board in August for preliminary discussion.
He explained that the District currently holds over $20 million in deposits with
Eastern Sierra Community Bank, which earns no interest after administrative
fees are applied.

Wallis stated that the District evaluated alternative investment options to ensure
compliance with public agency requirements for safety, liquidity, and yield.
Five Star Bank was identified as a qualified institution offering collateralized
investment options with an approximate return of 4.2 percent. In response to a
Board request, staff also contacted local banks and credit unions to explore
community-based investment options; however, El Dorado Savings Bank could
not collateralize deposits above $250,000, and other local credit unions did not
offer eligible investment products for government entities.

Wallis recommended that administration and finance staff determine the
appropriate amount of cash to transfer to interest-bearing accounts once final
decisions are made regarding pending bond and pension obligations.

Public Comment: None

Board Discussion: Directors thanked Wallis for researching local options and
confirmed their support for pursuing secure, higher-yield investment
opportunities while maintaining compliance with all legal and financial
requirements.

Motion by Smith: to authorize administration to move eligible District funds
into qualified, collateralized investment accounts as presented
2nd: Barrett
Roll Call Vote
Barrett - Yes
Smith - Yes

Page 15 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17, 2025
Regular Meeting Page 9 of 11

Lent - Yes

Best-Baker — Yes

Turner — Yes
Pass: 5-0

Capital Items - FY 25/26 Approval

Chief Financial Officer Mossman presented the District’s fiscal year 2025—
2026 capital budget for Board approval. She explained that a placeholder of $2
million had been included in the previously adopted annual budget, and the
Capital Committee subsequently met to prioritize the projects within that
allocation.

Mossman reported that the Finance Committee reviewed and approved the
recommended capital items at its recent meeting. The proposed projects include
essential equipment replacements and facility improvements necessary to
maintain safe and efficient operations across multiple departments.

Public Comment: None

Board Discussion: Directors confirmed that the proposed capital spending
aligns with the approved operating budget and expressed appreciation for the
prioritization process undertaken by the Capital Committee.

Motion by Best-Baker: to approve the Capital items
2"Md: [ent
Roll Call Vote
Barrett - Yes
Smith - Yes
Lent - Yes
Best-Baker — Yes
Turner — Yes
Pass: 5-0

Financial & Statistical Reports

Chief Financial Officer Mossman presented the July 2025 financial and
statistical reports, the first month of the new fiscal year. She noted that the
District budgeted a loss of approximately $1.5 million for the month,
recognizing that July would be a slower period due to provider vacations and
the transition of services with Mammoth Orthopedic Institute. The actual net
loss was $1.35 million, which was $163,000 better than budget.

Revenue was slightly below budget by $44,000, primarily due to lower surgical
volume, while expenses were favorable to budget by $163,000. Mossman
reported that leaders continue to be held accountable for managing
departmental budgets through the “CEO of Your Own Cost Center” initiative.

Page 16 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17, 2025
Regular Meeting Page 10 of 11

She noted that operating performance benefited from reduced expenses and
higher miscellaneous income, including interest earnings. The operating
margin, though negative for the month, is expected to improve as surgical and
outpatient volumes increase.

Inpatient admissions were slightly below budget, largely reflecting changes in
surgical case mix and shorter stays for orthopedic cases under Medicare’s two-
midnight rule. Outpatient volumes exceeded budget across most service lines.

Mossman reviewed payer mix trends, noting a modest increase in Medicare
volume, which presents reimbursement challenges due to recent federal rate
reductions and sequestration withholds.

Wage and benefit expenses were managed effectively, with total labor costs
under budget despite slightly higher FTEs. Benefit costs have declined due to
lower utilization in the District’s self-funded plan, while maintaining the same
level of employee coverage.

She also provided a detailed cash and revenue cycle update:

e Accounts receivable days improved to 71, down from 89 earlier in the
year and approaching the target range of 45—60 days.

e Cash decreased by approximately $912,000 for the month, less than the
reported net loss due to timing differences.

o The District ended July with a cash balance of $28 million and
continues to see high monthly cash collections, exceeding $11 million in
several recent months.

o Upfront patient collections reached $78,000, a significant increase from
historical levels.

Mossman credited ongoing improvements in billing, coding, and compliance
processes, as well as the partnership with Jory for revenue cycle management.
She reported that the District plans to transition Medi-Cal billing to Jory later in
the year to improve consistency and performance. Two contingency-based
vendors are also assisting with denial recovery and underpayment audits,
having recovered more than $300,000 to date.

Public Comment: none

Board Discussion: Directors expressed appreciation for the detailed financial
review and the continued progress on revenue cycle and expense management
initiatives. Director Barrett voiced concern about the continued monthly losses
and requested that the record reflect his dissenting vote on approval of the
financial statements.

Motion by Best-Baker: to approve Financial and Statistical Report
2nd; Smith
Roll Call Vote

Barrett - No

Page 17 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 17, 2025

Regular Meeting

GENERAL INFORMATION
FROM BOARD MEMBERS

ADJOURNMENT

Page 11 of 11

Smith - Yes

Lent - Yes

Best-Baker — Yes

Turner — Yes
Pass: 4-1

Community Event Calendar and Public Engagement

A Director inquired about the status of the Board’s community event calendar
to support attendance at local events. Wallis explained that the calendar was
initially compiled by the Marketing and Administrative teams and will continue
to be updated and redistributed as new community opportunities arise.

Ticket Distribution Policy

Wallis reported that the Governance Committee reviewed the District’s Ticket
Distribution Policy to ensure compliance with Fair Political Practices
Commission (FPPC) regulations. A revised policy will be brought forward at
the next Board meeting to clarify procedures for board attendance at
community events.

Emergency Department Experience

A Director shared a recent personal experience receiving care in the Emergency
Department, noting that despite a high patient volume during a holiday
weekend, staff provided efficient and compassionate service. The Director
expressed appreciation for the professionalism of the clinical team and
acknowledged the high level of coordination among departments.

Community Feedback and Patient Experience

Board members discussed the importance of sharing positive patient
experiences and community feedback to help build trust and awareness of the
hospital’s quality of care. Members expressed appreciation for the staft’s
continued dedication to serving patients with compassion and professionalism.

Adjournment at 7:23 pm.

Jean Turner
Northern Inyo Healthcare District
Chair

Attest:

David Lent
Northern Inyo Healthcare District Chair
Secretary

Page 18 of 149



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors September 29, 2025

Special Meeting

CALL TO ORDER

PRESENT

PUBLIC COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT TO
CLOSED SESSION

RETURN TO OPEN
SESSION

ADJOURNMENT

Page 1 of 1

Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board Chair Turner called the
meeting to order at 5:00 pm.

Jean Turner, Chair

Melissa Best-Baker, Vice Chair

David Lent, Secretary

Laura Smith, Member at Large

Christian Wallis, Interim Chief Executive Officer

Chair Turner reported that at this time, audience members may speak on any
items not on the agenda that are within the jurisdiction of the Board.

There were no comments from the public.

Adjournment to closed session at 5:03 pm

Called back to order at 6:04 pm
Chair Turner stated there were no reportable actions from the closed session.

Adjournment at 6:05 pm.

Jean Turner
Northern Inyo Healthcare District
Chair

Attest:

David Lent
Northern Inyo Healthcare District
Secretary

Page 19 of 149



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE

V/

NoRTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Title: Advance Directives
Owner: DON Inpatient Services \ Department: Acute/Subacute Unit
Scope: Clinical Staff District Wide, Admission Services, Medical Records Department
Date Last Modified: 06/12/2025 Last Review Date: No Review Version: 6
Date
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors \ Original Approval Date: 05/04/2011
PURPOSE:

Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) is committed to honoring the directives as expressed and written by
our patients or their designee, known as the durable power of attorney for health care (DPOA), related to
medical treatment. In order to meet this goal, our patients must be offered education about and the option of
completing advanced directive paperwork.

DEFINITIONS:

Advanced Directive (AD): Is a written instruction, recognized under state law, such as a living will or durable
power of attorney for health care. It is not a signed physician order and cannot take the place of such. The AD
helps to define the wishes relative to end of life care for the patient and identifies the DPOA who can speak for
the patient in the event that they are incapacitated.

Physician Order for Life Sustaining Treatment (POLST): This is a physician signed order that is co-signed
by the patient or their DPOA, which is utilized in non-hospital settings. This provides orders for care related to
resuscitation, which are honored by pre-hospital care providers in California. This form is not considered an
advanced directive, as it does not contain a DPOA.

POLICY:

All inpatients and applicable outpatients, or their representatives will be advised of the patient’s right to
formulate an advanced directive. They will also be advised of their right to update or change the advanced
directive at any time. For those inpatients with an advanced directive will have a copy placed in the medical
record.

PROCEDURE:

I. Admission Services Responsibilities-

1. At the time of registration for Emergency Department or Inpatient or Observation Services, NIHD
Patient Access Representatives will have the patient or family/caregiver complete the top portion of the
Adult Advanced Directive Acknowledgement form. Form may be found on intranet>Approved Forms>
Adult Advanced Directive Acknowledgement. This form is available in English and Spanish
versions.file://root.nih.org/home/Shared/Forms%20Committee/Approved/

2. The registration clerk will complete the bottom portion of the Adult Advanced Directive
Acknowledgement form. They will provide the patient with handouts as described in the form.

Page 1 of 3
Advance Directives

Page 20 of 149



3. If any type of advanced directive is obtained from the patient, the Patient Access Representative will
scan it into the patient’s electronic medical record to assure it is available to staff providing care to the
patient.

a. Prior to scanning, the patient’s name, date of birth and medical records number will be written onto
the top right hand corner by the admission clerk.
II.  Nursing Services Responsibilities -

1. The RN will assess for and document the existence of the patient’s advanced directive as a part of the
admission assessment process for all adult patients in an inpatient or observation status.

2. RN will be responsible to clarify with the patient if the document represents their current wishes.
Patients have the right to review or revise their advanced directives should they wish to do so.

3. If the patient has advanced directives, which are not within the NIHD medical records repository, the
family should be encouraged by the RN to bring them to the hospital as soon as feasible.

4. The RN should communicate pertinent information related to the advanced directive to the patient’s
physician or advanced practice provider (APP).

III. Case Management (CM) and/or Social Service (LCSW) Responsibilities -

1. A member of the case management team will review each adult patient who is in an admitted or
observation status on a daily basis to determine need for education or support related to advanced
directives.

2. When requested by a patient or family/caregiver, Case Management will provide copies and explain the
advance directives process. Support will be provided to assist with completion of forms in a timely
manner and support physician/APP discussions.

3. The CM team member who provided the service will complete documentation of process within the
patient electronic medical record. Case Management will be available to train staff on the advance
directive process as needed.

IV.  Physician/APP Responsibilities -

1. The attending physician/APP shall review an Advance Directive contained in the patient’s chart and
discuss its content with the patient and/or patient’s healthcare representative.

2. The physician shall document a summary of all discussions with the patient or significant others
concerning the patient’s Advance Directive within the electronic medical record.

3. If an Advance Directive exists, but a copy is not available for the record, important care decisions shall
be made by the attending physician in consultation with the decision maker using substituted judgment
or best interest criteria as appropriate.

4. The physician will incorporate the executed Advance Directive in the patient’s treatment plan.
Computerized Physician Order Entry (CPOE) shall be completed by the physician/APP to give
directions on code status during the hospitalization as appropriate.

V. Completion of Advanced Directive Forms-
1. In order for the advanced directive to be legally binding, it must be notarized or signed by two
witnesses meeting the following criteria.
a. The witness must know the patient who is signing the advanced directive or the patient must provide
convincing evidence of their identity to the witness; and
b. The witness must not be appointed as an agent in the advanced directive; and
c. The witness must not be the patient’s health care provider or an employee of the patient’s health care
provider or an operator or employee of a community care facility or residential care facility where
the patient is receiving care; and
d. At least one of the witnesses must not be a family member or a person that would benefit from the
advanced directive or benefit from the patient’s estate after their death.
2. In order to complete and sign the advanced directive the following rules apply:
a. The patient must not be under any duress to sign the document and the patient must be of sound
mind; and

W

Page 2 of 3
Advance Directives

Page 21 of 149



b. The patient must sign the document in front of the notary or in front of the witness; and
c. Ifthe patient is a resident of a skilled nursing facility, a patient advocate or an ombudsman of the
facility must also sign the document.
3. Once the advanced directive is completed, a copy of the advanced directive will be placed into the
patient’s electronic medical record.
4. The advanced directive may be changed at any time by the patient. A newer advanced directive
supersedes any previous advanced directive.

REFERENCES:
1. California State Operations Manual 12/2016, 42 CFR 489.100 & 489.102
2. CMS 485.608(a)
3. California Probate Code, Division 4.7, 4701
4. CAMCAH January 2016 R1.01.02.01

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:

Advanced Directives become a part of the patient’s medical record, which is managed by the NIHD Medical
Records Department.

CROSS REFERENCE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:
1. Admission Procedure of Hospice Inpatient

Admission, Documentation, Assessment, Discharge and Transfer of Swing-Bed Patients

Code Blue Procedure — Code Blue Team

Color-Coded wristband use

Consent for Medical Treatment

Discharge Planning for the Hospitalized Patient

Documentation of Case Management Services

End of Life Option Act

9. Forms Development and Control Policy

10. Legal Health Record

11. Long Term Acute Care Hospital

12. Organization-Wide Assessment & Reassessment of Patients

13. Organ, Tissue, Eye Donation

14. Patient’s Rights

15. Pediatric Standards of Care and Routines

16. Requests Regarding Resuscitative Measures and Physician Orders for Life Sustaining Treatment
(POLST)

17. Rights of Swing Bed Patients

18. Standards of Care: End of Life

19. Standards of Care — Swing Bed Resident

20. Standards of Care — Acute-Subacute services — adult patient

e A i

| Supersedes: v.5 Advance Directives

Page 3 of 3
Advance Directives

Page 22 of 149



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE

V/

NoRTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Title: Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Owner: Manager Employee Health & Infection Department: Infection Prevention

Control

Scope: Inpatient Nursing, Outpatient Nursing, Emergency Department

Date Last Modified: 3/3/2025 | Last Review Date: | Version: 1

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors \ Original Approval Date:
PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to provide a framework to support Northern Inyo Healthcare District
(NIHD) in the prevention of central line—associated bloodstream infections (CLABSIs). This policy
provides the steps necessary to minimize risk for infection in central venous catheters.

RATIONALE:

At times, central line catheters are necessary in clinical care; however, their use puts patients at risk for
complications, including local and systemic bloodstream infections. Such infections are largely
avoidable. National guidelines and recommendations are continually exploring best practices to reduce
the incidence of such infectious complications. This policy, which is based on currently available
evidence and national guidelines, provides a scientific and evidence-based approach to prevent
CLABSIs.

DEFINITIONS:

1. Case definition: The application of uniform criteria such as clinical, laboratory, and diagnostic
modalities for identifying a particular disease (or other health event). Time and place are often
additional components of a case definition.

2. Central line-associated bloodstream infection (CLABSI): A national surveillance definition
of bloodstream infections associated with central line use.

3. Central venous catheter (CVC): A device used to access the central vascular system for
hemodynamic monitoring, medication administration, infusions, blood sampling or dialysis.

4. CLABSI bundles: A set of evidence-based care practices relevant to central venous access
devices that, when used together, improve the quality of care.

5. Manufacturer’s instructions for use: Guidance from a product’s manufacturer that instructs
the user how to use the product appropriately. Instructions for use is abbreviated “IFU.”

6. Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC): A type of catheter inserted into a basilic,
cephalic, or brachial vein with the tip terminating in a great vessel of the heart.

7. Tunneled central venous catheter: A central line that is tunneled under the skin before
entering a large vein.

POLICY:

Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) shall use this policy to guide healthcare personnel (HCP) in the
practice of central venous catheter (CVC) use to ensure safe practices of vascular access and reduce the risk
of infection.

Page 1 of 12
Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 23 of 149



PROCEDURE:
General Principles:

1.

(o¢]

10.

1.

12.

13

The use of central venous catheters (CVCs) is associated with the risk of local and systemic
bloodstream infections; however, selecting the most appropriate catheter type and insertion
location, and the routine use of CLABSI bundle elements can reduce risk.
The patient’s medical team must:

a. Evaluate the necessity of the CVC prior to placement;

b. Inform the patient of the risks and obtain patient consent for the procedure; and

c. Continue to evaluate the need for the device daily.
Strict adherence to hand hygiene practices and aseptic technique must be used during all
insertion, care, access, and maintenance of any CVC.
Only persons with appropriate licensure and demonstrated competency may perform CVC
insertion or removal.
CVCs placed in the field or during code situations are prioritized for replacement, preferably
within 24 to 48 hours of admission.
Use a standardized checklist to support adherence to correct insertion technique and infection
prevention practices at the time of CVC insertion. When possible, this checklist should be
completed by someone other than the person performing the insertion.
A second healthcare worker trained in sterile technique should be present at all CVC insertions.
Team members are encouraged to speak up and stop the line if insertion practices are not
followed or a break in sterile technique occurs.
Insertion of a CVC requires maximum barrier precautions.
Chlorhexidine gluconate (CHG) is preferred application for skin prep prior to line insertion. All
skin prep products will used as instructed by the product manufacturer for both application and
dry time.
Use a standardized supply kit or cart that contains all necessary components for the insertion of
a CVC.
Routine replacement of a CVC is not recommended unless medically indicated example
hemodynamic stability, long term infusions.
Line exchange over a guide wire is not recommended and should not be performed.

.Surveillance of CLABSI is important to monitor the facility’s process and outcome measures,

compare them to national and state benchmarking, and identify opportunities for improvement in
safe patient care.

Preparing for Line Placement:

Prior to insertion of a central line, the patient’s care team must verify that line placement is indicated,
select the most appropriate insertion site, and select the appropriate type of catheter.

Indications for Central Venous Catheter Use:

Indications for CVC use include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:
o Clinical instability of the patient and/or complexity of infusion regimen (e.g., the need

for multiple infusates).
o Episodic chemotherapy where insufficient peripheral venous access is anticipated.

Page 2 of 12

Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 24 of 149



o Prescribed continuous infusion therapy that is inappropriate for peripheral infusion (e.g.,
administration of vesicant agents, parenteral nutrition, electrolytes, or other medications)
Access for invasive hemodynamic monitoring.

Long-term intermittent infusion therapy (e.g., administration of any medication,
including antimicrobial medication.

o Patient history of failed or difficult peripheral IV access when use of ultrasound guidance
has failed.

o Temporary hemodialysis, continuous renal replacement therapy, or plasmapheresis
access.

e The provider must document daily necessity within patient chart.
Selection of the Catheter Insertion Site:

e The subclavian vein, rather than internal jugular vein, is the preferred location to minimize the
risk of infection when nontunneled CVC devices are used.

e Use of the subclavian vein for hemodialysis catheters should be avoided due to the increased
risk of subclavian vein stenosis.

o Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) placement should be avoided in patients with
chronic kidney disease Stage 3b or higher.

e The femoral site is not reccommended. In children and infants, insertion in the femoral site may
be necessary if insertion in upper body locations is contraindicated. Ensure that the exit site is
located outside the diaper area. If the provider determines that it is necessary to use the femoral
site, justification must be documented.

e Remove excess hair at the insertion site, when necessary for dressing application. Use electrical
disposable head surgical clippers or single patient use scissors to remove hair.

e In patients with chronic kidney disease, use a fistula or graft instead of a CVC for permanent
access for dialysis.

Selection of the Central Venous Catheter:

e When selecting a CVC, choose the fewest lumens needed for therapy.

e Consider use of a PICC or a midline, tunneled, or implantable vascular access device for
patients in whom long-term (at least 5 to 7 days) vascular access requirements are anticipated.

e Use of an antiseptic- or antimicrobial-impregnated catheter may be warranted in certain patient
populations, as determined by the facility.

Line Placement:

e Team members to complete Central Line Insertion Practice (CLIP) checklist except in the
operating room and send to Infection Prevention. The CLIP form helps facilitate quality
improvement by identifying specific gaps in adherence to recommended prevention practices, thereby
helping to target intervention strategies for reducing CLABSI rates.

e NIHD practice is to have observer complete CLIP and send form to Infection Prevention.

e Team members assisting with insertion are encouraged to speak up and stop the procedure if
insertion practices are not followed or a break in sterile technique occurs.

Page 3 of 12
Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 25 of 149



e When possible, keep the door to the room where the procedure is performed closed to avoid
traffic in and out of the room during the procedure. It is helpful to post a STOP sign on the door
to reduce traffic.

Hand Hygiene:

e Perform hand hygiene before and after palpating the catheter insertion site, as well as before and
after inserting, replacing, accessing, repairing, or dressing a CVC.

e Palpation of the insertion site should not be performed after the application of antisepsis unless
aseptic technique is maintained.

o Sterile gloves must be worn for CVC insertion. However, gloves are not a substitute for hand
hygiene.

Barrier Precautions during CVC Insertion:

e Maximum barrier precautions are required for all CVC placements.
e The HCP placing the CVC, including those assisting with line placement, must don a bouffant
hair covering, mask, sterile gown, and sterile gloves.

o The cap must cover all hair.
o The mask must cover the nose and mouth tightly.

e The patient must be covered from head/neck to toe with a sterile body drape, with a small
opening at the catheter insertion site.

e Position the patient with their mouth directed away from the insertion site. If possible, have the
patient wear a mask.

Skin Preparation at Insertion Site:

e If chlorhexidine is contraindicated (e.g., patient is allergic to chlorhexidine), use iodophor (e.g.,
povidone iodine) or 70% alcohol.

e For preterm neonates, low birthweight infants, and patients within the first 14 days of life, use a
povidone-iodine, alcohol-based, or aqueous chlorhexidine solution. Remove antiseptic after
procedure is complete, using sterile water or saline.

e Topical antimicrobial ointment should be applied at the time of hemodialysis catheter insertion.

o Before applying the ointment, verify that the product does not interact with CVC
material.

o Mupirocin should not be routinely used.

e Refer to Lippincott Procedures:

o Central venous access catheter insertion, assisting
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3261094&disciplineld=6182

o Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) insertion
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3260894 &disciplineld=6182

Supplies for Insertion:

Page 4 of 12
Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 26 of 149



e All-inclusive insertion kits are to be used during all CVC insertions to ensure standardization of
insertion practices and use of appropriate products.
e A designated team member will obtain the kit when needed.

o The CVC kit will be readily available in departments where central line placements are
performed.

o The team member will verify that all supplies are gathered and ready before the CVC
insertion begins.

Ultrasound Guidance for Insertion of a Central Venous Catheter:

e Ultrasound guidance for CVC insertion must only be performed by a qualified team member
who has been fully trained on the process.

e To ensure sterility, use sterile, single-use ultrasound gel and a sterile sheath over the ultrasound
probe. Disinfect the probe before and after each use according to the probe manufacturer’s
Instructions for Use (IFU’s).

Central Venous Catheter Securement:

e Secure the catheter with an integrated securement device, subcutaneous anchor securement system,
tissue adhesive, or adhesive securement device, if available. Guidelines recommend an additional
securement method beyond the primary dressing because these devices reduce vascular access device
motion, which increases the risk of unintentional catheter dislodgement and complications requiring
premature catheter removal.

e Sutures should be avoided whenever possible because they are associated with an increased risk of
needlestick injury and support the growth of biofilm, which increases the risk of catheter-related
bloodstream infection.

Insertion Site Dressing

o Excess hair at the insertion site should be removed when necessary to facilitate dressing
application. Use electrical surgical clippers with a disposable head or single-patient-use scissors
to remove hair.

e Apply chlorhexidine-containing dressing for patients older than 2 months of age. Follow the
dressing manufacturer’s IFU.

e Ifuse of a chlorhexidine dressing is contraindicated or not applicable, use sterile gauze or sterile
transparent dressing to cover the catheter site.

e Replace the CVC dressing as indicated in the Maintenance and Use of the Central Venous
Catheter following Lippincott Procedures:

o Central venous access dressing change
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3261088&disciplineld=6182

o Central venous access dressing change pediatric
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=4285278&disciplineld=6182

o Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) dressing change
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3260898 &disciplineld=6182

o Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) dressing change pediatric
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3260897&disciplineld=6182

Page 5 of 12
Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 27 of 149



Insertion Documentation:

e Central line inserter must document a narrative note in patients chart.
e Nursing team to document within nursing documentation the below:
o Central line access type
o Number of lumens
o CVC site and laterality
o Site and dressing integrity

Maintenance and Use of CVC:

e Evaluate the insertion site per shift by visually inspecting the dressing and palpating
through the transparent dressing to identify tenderness. Gauze and opaque dressings
should not be lifted if there are no signs or symptoms of infection.

e If the patient has tenderness, fever without an obvious source, or another indication of a
local or systemic infection, the dressing should be removed to allow thorough
examination of the site.

e Encourage patients to report any changes in their catheter site or discomfort to their care.

Site and Line Maintenance:

e Use chlorhexidine-containing dressings or impregnated discs on patients older than 2 months of
age. Follow the manufacturer’s IFU’s.

o If chlorhexidine dressing cannot be used, use a sterile gauze or sterile, transparent,
semipermeable dressing to cover the catheter site.

o Change transparent dressings every 7 days. When applying dressing, label it with the date
of application to help ensure that the dressing is changed in accordance with the specified
timeline.

o Change the dressing immediately if it is soiled, loose, or damp.

e Occlusive gauze dressings are recommended if the patient is diaphoretic or if the site is bleeding
or 0ozing.
o Change occlusive gauze dressing at least every 2 days. Change the dressing sooner if it is
not clean, dry, or intact.

o Can wear clean gloves when removing dressing at the catheter insertion site. If there is a need
to touch the insertion site, sterile gloves are required.

e Do not submerge the catheter or catheter site in water. If the patient asks to shower, ensure that
the catheter and connecting device are protected with an impermeable cover.

CVC Dressing Change:
e Follow Lippincott Procedures:

o Central venous access device dressing change
o Peripherally inserted central catheter dressing change

Page 6 of 12
Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 28 of 149



Central Venous Catheter Access: Intravenous Injection Ports, Needleless Connectors, and
Catheter Hubs

To cover connectors, use an antiseptic-containing hub, connector cap, or port protector. Follow
the manufacturer’s instructions for use (IFU).

Before accessing catheter hubs, needleless connectors, or injection ports, “scrub the hub”: Apply
mechanical friction with an alcoholic chlorhexidine preparation or 70% isopropyl alcohol.
Follow the prep solution manufacturer’s IFU.

o If there are no IFU available, use a scrub time of 5 to 15 seconds for 70% isopropyl
alcohol.

If the line must be accessed multiple times after the disinfection cap is removed, additional
“scrub the hub” mechanical disinfection is required each time the line is accessed. Han

If blood is visible in a cap after a blood administration protocol, the cap must be changed. The
HCP changing the cap must wear sterile gloves and a mask.

Connect needleless connectors directly to the CVC hub of an attached extension set or the
injection site on an administration set.

o Follow the manufacturer’s IFU for flushing, clamping, and disconnection of needleless
connectors.
o Ensure aseptic technique when changing connectors.

Administration Sets:

All types of IV administration sets are changed immediately when contamination is
suspected/known, or when the integrity of the product or system has been compromised.

Follow aseptic technique when changing, connecting, and accessing all administration sets.

Use new administration sets for newly inserted CVCs.

After intermittent use of the tubing set, attach a new, sterile covering device to the male luer
end. “Looping” (attaching the exposed male luer to a port on the same tubing set) is not allowed.
Use of add-on devices such as extension sets, needleless connectors, and secondary sets is to be
kept to a minimum. Only use add-on devices when their use is clinically indicated and follow
the device manufacturers’ IFU.

Table 1. Routine Changing of IV Administration Sets:

Administration Type Set Change Frequency
Primary and secondary continuous Every 7 days
infusions
Primary and intermittent infusions Every 24 hours
Parenteral nutrition Every 24 hours
Lipid emulsions Every 12 hours
Blood and Blood Products Every 4 hours

Page 7 of 12

Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 29 of 149



Labeling of CVC:

e All CVC dressings and administration sets will be labeled with
the implementation/expiration date to help ensure timely dressing changes and administration set
changes.

Central Venous Catheter Flushing Protocol:

e Nurse to ensure that there is a provider order for flushing the CVC
e Place a disinfectant-containing end cap on the end of the needless connector.
e Follow Lippincott Procedures
o Central venous access catheter flushing and locking
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3261096&disciplineld=6182
o Central venous tunneled catheter flushing and locking.
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3260708 &disciplineld=6182
o Central venous tunneled catheter flushing and locking, pediatric.
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3261082&disciplineld=6182
o Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) flushing and locking.
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3260508 &disciplineld=6182
o Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) flushing and locking, pediatric.
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3260895&disciplineld=6182

Central Venous Catheter Removal:

e When the daily review of the device indication determines that the CVC is no longer indicated,
the device should be removed. (See indications noted earlier in this policy.)

e Removal of the CVC is to be performed only by team members with appropriate education,
demonstrated competency, and the privilege to do so.

e Removal of an implanted port should be performed in an operating room or approved procedural
room.

e A provider order is required for the removal of any CVC.

o Follow Lippincott procedures:

o Central venous access catheter removal.
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3261091 &hits=central,removal.line&a=fals
e&ad=false&q=central%20line%20removal

o Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) removal.
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3260893 &hits=removal.line.central&a=fals
e&ad=false&q=central%20line%20removal

Accessing and Deaccessing Ports:
e Follow Lippincott Procedures

o Implanted port accessing
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3260978 &hits=portion,port.ports&a=false&ad=false

&q=port

Page 8 of 12
Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 30 of 149



Blood Sampling or Culture from the Central Venous Catheter:

Each manipulation of the CVC is a recognized risk factor for infection. When blood samples are needed
for culturing, peripheral phlebotomy should be considered whenever possible. Blood draw from two
peripheral sites from percutaneous venipuncture is the preferred method of blood culture collection.
The nurse will verify the provider order for a blood culture.

o If an infection is suspected, it is expected that the blood cultures will be collected before
antimicrobial administration is initiated.
o If an infection related to the CVC is suspected, paired blood samples can be drawn from the
CVC and a peripheral site.
e If peripheral blood samples cannot be collected, it is recommended that blood samples be
collected through more than one catheter lumen.
e The volume of blood needed for a blood culture depends on the collection tube being used.
Follow manufacturer’s IFU.
e When testing pediatric patients, the volume of blood needed is determined using a weight-based
approach.
e Do not routinely culture the catheter tip.
e Follow Lippincott procedures
o Central venous tunneled catheter blood sampling.
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3260712&disciplineld=6182
o Central venous tunneled catheter blood sampling, pediatric.
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3260711&disciplineld=6182
o Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) blood sampling.
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=3358971&disciplineld=6182
o Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) blood sampling, pediatric.
https://procedures.lww.com/Inp/view.do?pld=5129325&disciplineld=6182

Staff Education:

e All HCP involved in the care of patients with CVCs must be educated on the indications for
CVC use; proper procedures for insertion, use, maintenance, and removal of CVCs; and relevant
infection prevention and control practices, as appropriate to their roles and responsibilities, at
the following frequency:

o Upon hire
o Annually thereafter
o Asneeded

Patient/Family Education:

When a central line is placed, provide the patient and/or a family member with the educational handout titled
FAQs About Catheter-Associated Bloodstream Infections, available in both English and Spanish located on
NIHD intranet. Document in the patient’s chart that the education was provided.

o English version:
file://root.nih.org/home/Public/Intranet%20Redesign/Intranet%20Links/Forms/Infection%20Pre
vention/Patient%20Information%20Sheets/Patient%?20Information_BSI1.pdf

Page 9 of 12
Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 31 of 149



o Spanish version:
file://root.nih.org/home/Public/Intranet%20Redesign/Intranet%20Links/Forms/Infection
%?20Prevention/Patient%20Information%20Sheets/Patient%20Information BSI Sp.pdf

Table 1: SHEA Summary of Recommendations to Prevent CLABSI

Table 1. Summary of Recommendations to Prevent CLABSI

Before insertion

1. Provide easy access to an evidence-based list of indications for CVC use to minimize unnecessary CVC placement (Quality of Evidence: LOW)

2. Require education and competency assessment of HCP involved in insertion, care, and maintenance of CVCs about CLABSI prevention (Quality of
Evidence: MODERATE)"™ ™

3. Bathe ICU patients aged >2 months with a chlorhexidine preparation on a daily basis (Quality of Evidence: HIGH)* *

At insertion

1 In ICU and non-ICU settings, a facility should have a process in place, such as a checklist, to ensure adherence to infection prevention practices at the
time of CVC insertion (Quality of Evidence: MODERATE)'*!

2. Perform hand hygiene prior to catheter insertion or manipulation (Quality of Evidence: MODERATE)'%2-1%7

3. The subclavian site is preferred to reduce infectious complications when the catheter is placed in the ICU setting (Quality of Evidence: HIGH)*~*7.8-110

4. Use an all-inclusive catheter cart or kit (Quality of Evidence: MODERATE)'*®

5. Use ultrasound guidance for catheter insertion (Quality of Evidence: HIGH)****

6. Use maximum sterile barrier precautions during CVC insertion (Quality of Evidence: MODERATE)'# 1=

7. Use an alcoholic chlorhexidine antiseptic for skin preparation (Quality of Evidence: HIGH)**1% B¢

After insertion

1. Ensure appropriate nurse-to-patient ratio and limit use of float nurses in ICUs (Quality of Evidence: HIGH)*~**

2. Use chlorhexidine-containing dressings for CVCs in patients over 2 months of age (Quality of Evidence: HIGH)*135-142

3. For non-tunneled CVCs in adults and children, change transparent dressings and perform site care with a chlorhexidine-based antiseptic at least every 7
days or immediately if the dressing is soiled, loose, or damp. Change gauze dressings every 2 days or earlier if the dressing is soiled, loose, or damp
(Quality of Evidence: MODERATE) > ¢

4. Disinfect catheter hubs, needleless connectors, and injection ports before accessing the catheter (Quality of Evidence: MODERATE) %15

5. Remove nonessential catheters (Quality of Evidence: MODERATE)

6. Routine replacement of administration sets not used for blood, blood products, or lipid formulations can be performed at intervals up to 7 days (Quality
of Evidence: HIGH)*™

7. Perform surveillance for CLABSI in ICU and non-ICU settings (Quality of Evidence: HIGH)*15515%

1. Use antiseptic- or antimicrobial-impregnated CVCs (Quality of Evidence: HIGH in adult patients®*1¥31 and Quality of Evidence: MODERATE in pediatric
patients)! 173

2. Use antimicrobial lock therapy for long-term CVCs (Quality of Evidence: HIGH)'™ **

3. Use recombinant tissue plasminogen activating factor (rt-PA) once weekly after hemodialysis in patients undergoing hemodialysis through a CVC (Quality
of Evidence: HIGH)**?

4. Utilize infusion or vascular access teams for reducing CLABSI rates (Quality of Evidence: LOW)'**1%¢

5. Use antimicrobial ointments for hemodialysis catheter insertion sites (Quality of Evidence: HIGH)™*"

6. Use an antiseptic-containing hub/connector cap/port protector to cover connectors (Quality of Evidence: MODERATE)? % 2%

1. Do not use antimicrobial prophylaxis for short-term or tunneled catheter insertion or while catheters are in situ (Quality of Evidence: HIGH)*® ***
2. Do not routinely replace CVCs or arterial catheters (Quality of Evidence: HIGH)?*

1. Routine use of needleless connectors as a CLABSI prevention strategy before an assessment of risks, benefits, and education regarding proper use™*

2. Surveillance of other types of catheters (eg, peripheral arterial or peripheral venous catheters)'**#

3. Standard, nonantimicrobial transparent dressings and CLABSI risk.

4. The impact of using chlorhexidine-based products on bacterial resistance to chlorhexidine

5. Sutureless securement

6. Impact of silver zeolite-impregnated umbilical catheters in preterm infants (applicable in countries where it is approved for use in children)®”

7. Necessity of mechanical disinfection of a catheter hub, needleless connector, and injection port before accessing the catheter when antiseptic-containing
caps are being used

Note. CLABS|, central line-associated bloodstream infection; CVC, central venous catheter, HCP, healthcare personnel; ICU, intensive care unit.

Page 10 of 12
Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 32 of 149



Table 2: Quality of Evidence:

Table 2. Quality of Evidence®

HIGH Highly confident that the true effect lies close to that of the estimated size and direction of the effect. Evidence is rated as high quality when
there are a wide range of studies with no major limitations, there is little variation between studies, and the summary estimate has a narrow
confidence interval.

MODERATE The true effect is likely to be close to the estimated size and direction of the effect, but there is a possibility that it is substantially different.
Evidence is rated as moderate quality when there are only a few studies and some have limitations but not major flaws, there is some
variation between studies, and/or the confidence interval of the summary estimate is wide.

Low The true effect may be substantially different from the estimated size and direction of the effect. Evidence is rated as low quality when
supporting studies have major flaws, there is important variation between studies, the confidence interval of the summary estimate is very
wide, and/or there are no rigorous studies.

“Based on the CDC Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advisory Committee (HICPAC) *Update to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention and the Healthcare Infection Control
Practices Advisory Committee Recommendations Categorization Scheme for Infection Control and Prevention Guideline Recommendations” (October 2019), the Grades of Recommendation,
Assessment, Development, and Evaluation (GRADE),®* and the Canadian Task Force on Preventive Health Care.’*

REFERENCES:

1. Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality. Central line-associated bloodstream infections
(CLABSI). Accessed June 6, 2025. Retrieved from https://www.ahrq.gov/topics/central-line-
associated-bloodstream-infections-clabsi.html

2. Avalos D. Vascular access device-associated infections. (2019) In: APIC Text. Association for
Professionals in Infection Control and Epidemiology. Retrieved from
https://text.apic.org/toc/prevention-measures-for-healthcare-associated-infections/vascular-
access-device-associated-infections

3. Buetti, N., Marschall, J., Drees, M., Fakih, M. G., Hadaway, L., Maragakis, L. L., ... Mermel, L. A.
(2022). Strategies to prevent central line-associated bloodstream infections in acute-care hospitals: 2022
Update. Infection Control &#38; Hospital Epidemiology, 43(5), 553—569. doi:10.1017/ice.2022.87
<div></div>. Retrieved from https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/infection-control-and-hospital-
epidemiology/article/strategies-to-prevent-central-lineassociated-bloodstream-infections-in-acutecare-
hospitals-2022-update/01 DC7C8BBEA 1F496BC20C6EOEF634E3D

4. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). (2024) Central Line Insertion Practice (CLIP).
Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov/nhsn/pdfs/pscmanual/5psc_clipcurrent.pdf

5. Lippincott Procedures: All reviewed August 19, 2024

Central Venous Access Catheter Flushing and Locking
Central Venous Access Catheter Insertion, Assisting
Central Venous Access Device Dressing Change
Central Venous Tunneled Catheter Blood Sampling
Central venous tunneled catheter continuous infusion
Central venous access device dressing change, pediatric
Central venous tunneled catheter blood sampling, pediatric
Central venous tunneled catheter flushing and locking.
Central venous access device declotting
Central venous access device declotting, pediatric
Central venous tunneled catheter flushing and locking, pediatric
Central venous tunneled catheter dressing change, pediatric

. Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) blood sampling
Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) dressing change
Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) drug administration
Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) flushing and locking

VOB ATIIER SO 0 O

Page 11 of 12
Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 33 of 149



Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) insertion

Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) removal

Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) blood sampling, pediatric
Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) dressing change, pediatric
Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) flushing and locking, pediatric
Peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC) removal, pediatric

< g~ wn "0

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION: N/A

CROSS REFERENCE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:
1. Infection Prevention Plan (IPP)
2. Safe Injection Practices
3. Surveillance for Hospital Acquired Infections (HAIs)

| Supersedes: Not Set

Page 12 of 12
Central Line - Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention

Page 34 of 149



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE

V/

NoRTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Title: Chemotherapy Administration And Precautions
Owner: Perioperative Manager \ Department: Infusion
Scope: Infusion Center, Pharmacy
Date Last Modified: 10/08/2025 Last Review Date: No Review Version: 7
Date
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors \ Original Approval Date: 09/16/2020
PURPOSE:

To provide guidelines for the safe handling and administration of chemotherapy.

POLICY:

Orders for chemotherapy should be sent to the OP/Infusion Department. Complete orders must be written /
signed by the physician before the chemotherapy can be scheduled. As soon as the orders are completed, a copy
should be sent to Pharmacy so the medications will be available as needed. Unless the ordering physician has
full oncology privileges, oncologist recommendations also must be in the patient’s hospital file before
chemotherapy is scheduled. These recommendations shall include dosages, method of administration, and
frequency of cycles.

Staffing must be arranged so that patients receiving IV push or initiation of IV piggyback chemotherapy are not
left unattended while receiving the chemotherapy agents. Inpatients will be considered a higher acuity level for
the shift in which chemotherapy is initiated.

All chemotherapy agents will be prepared in the Pharmacy by a Pharmacy Tech and will be checked by
pharmacist and pharmacy tech before the medication leaves the Pharmacy. The RN will calculate dosage based
on height and weight if appropriate and will check reference material for dose ranges. Any discrepancy will be
reported to the Pharmacist.

Prior to the administration of the second cycle of any chemotherapy (first cycle of each new regimen is now
only given at the oncology facility) the orders will be checked against the chemotherapy protocol from the
oncologist and initialed / dated by two RNs within EMR that have completed the ONS Chemotherapy &
Immunotherapy course.

All chemotherapeutic infusions will be double checked by two RNs and signed in the electronic health record or
the chemotherapy flow sheet (or medication profile for inpatients).

IV push, IV piggyback and continuous IV infusion chemotherapy will be given by the physician or an RN
familiar with the chemotherapy agents, potential side effects and extravasation treatment for the particular
medications ordered.

IV chemotherapy will be administered by infusion pump. The only exceptions would be IV push and some
short IVPB chemotherapy regimens that have been preapproved by pharmacy for gravity administration.
(Vesicant chemotherapy agents should be administered IV push through a central line.)

Page 1 of 3
Chemotherapy Administration and Precautions

Page 35 of 149



Extravasation of a vesicant or irritant will be treated promptly by the RN in accordance with the protocol that
follows this chemotherapy policy procedure.

EQUIPMENT:

Chemotherapy gloves

Face shield or goggles (if needed).
Barrier gown

Biohazard container
Chux

PRECAUTIONS:

The majority of antineoplastic drugs are toxic compounds. Many are known to cause carcinogenic, mutagenic
or teratogenic effects. On direct contact, some antineoplastic drugs may cause irritation to the skin, eyes,
mucous membranes, ulceration and necrosis of tissues. The potential hazards involved with handling of
antineoplastic agents are associated with inhalation or skin contact with these agents. The following guidelines
should be followed to minimize these possibilities.

Pregnant personnel, those attempting to become pregnant and those suspected of being pregnant should avoid
administering chemotherapy. (Cal-Osha recommendation).

When handling chemotherapy agents the RN will wear one or two pairs of gloves. When administering an IV
push chemotherapy and when initiating or discontinuing an infusional chemotherapy medication, goggles or a
face shield and a long sleeved, nonpermeable cover gown should be worn if splashing may occur.

Gloves will be worn when urine and other patient excreta is handled during treatment and 48 hours after the
conclusion of therapy. Goggles or a face shield should be worn when emptying any urine container for a patient
that has had chemotherapy within the last 24.

PROCEDURE:

1. A chemotherapy consent should be signed by the patient for each protocol.

2. A patient assessment will be performed including a review of the most recent lab work and evidence of
side effects from prior chemotherapy. Chemotherapy administration may proceed after approval by the
physician prior to each cycle. (Note: Preapproval parameters may be ordered by the physician in
written form). Vital signs will be taken prior to administration of each cycle, and then on a routine basis
unless otherwise ordered or as indicated for each medication and/or patient tolerance.

3. Ifpatient does not have a central line, start IV per hospital policy. Choose larger deeper veins; they are
less prone to phlebitis and extravasation. If possible, avoid veins on back of hands and antecubital fossa).
Don appropriate apparel and place Chux under patient's IV arm.

4. The tubing is primed with normal saline in the Pharmacy. A safety connection device (Equashield) will
be used for each chemotherapy agent administered regardless of route (intravenous, IM, SQ,
intraperitoneal)

Administer premedications as ordered.
6. Vesicants will be administered after the premedication (before other non-vesicant chemotherapy) unless
the oncologist has specified a different order of administration.

e

8. Central IV Lines:
a. Flush as outlined in policy/procedure for that particular catheter type.
b. Check for blood return.

Page 2 of 3
Chemotherapy Administration and Precautions

Page 36 of 149



c. Ifblood return is absent or sluggish, reposition patient (have patient raise arm, have patient take
a deep breath, try drawing blood with patient in Trendelenburg position. If a good blood return
is noted, follow oncology order.. If blood return is absent or sluggish, and a declotting agent
(Alteplase) is ordered; administer per manufacturer instructions or call physician. A chest x-ray
may be needed to verify placement. Proceed with use if possible when approved by physician.

d. After chemotherapy flush has been completed, flush central line with solution (sterile normal
saline or heparin solution) as appropriate for the particular type of central line.

9. The patient should be instructed to report any burning, stinging or swelling at the IV site.
10. Extravasation Procedure:

IF EXTRAVASATION OCCURS: Follow extravasation policy / procedure in Lippincott

11. Disposal of chemotherapeutic equipment.

a. All syringes, IV bags and IV tubing contaminated with a chemotherapy agent will be treated as
infectious waste and must be disposed of intact and placed in red biohazard container labeled as
chemotherapy waste in room.

b. All disposable items such as gloves, gown, alcohol swabs, syringes, Chux, urinals, etc. shall
be considered hospital waste and placed in the regular trash. Gloves should be removed
slowly and carefully, folding inside out to limit contamination.

c. Wash hands after completion of administration and PPE removal.

DOCUMENTATION:

1. All medications should be charted in the Electronic Medical Record. . Patient assessment, teaching, and
discharge instructions should be completed and a copy saved in patient chart. IV infusion start and stop
times must be documented.

2. Charges based on infusion times, procedures, Vs, supplies, medications and oxygen as used.

REFERENCES:
1. OSHA Guidelines for Handling Cytotoxic Drugs
2. Oncology Nursing Society Chemotherapy and Immunotherapy Guidelines and Recommendations for
Practice, 2024

CROSS REFERENCES:
1. Chemotherapy Agents in the OR
2. Infiltration and Extravasation Management (Lippincott)

| Supersedes: v.6 Chemotherapy Administration And Precautions

Page 3 of 3
Chemotherapy Administration and Precautions

Page 37 of 149



V/

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

CLINICAL POLICY

NorTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT

One Team. One Goal. Your Health.
Title: Departments That Deliver Nursing Care to Patients
Owner: Interim CEO, COO, CNO \ Department: Nursing Administration
Scope: Nursing Services
Date Last Modified: Last Review Date: Version: 3
09/07/2022 11/17/2022

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors | Original Approval Date: 11/01/2014

PURPOSE:

To identify the departments that meet the definition of practicing nursing using the nursing process to deliver

patient care.

POLICY:

1. Based on the Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) definition of nursing care, the following

departments or services are identified as delivering nursing care to patients:
e Pre-Admission testing (PAT)
e Same Day Surgery (SDS)
e Post Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU)
e Infusion Center
e Interventional Radiology
e Acute/Subacute, Telemetry, and Pediatrics
Swing
Intensive Care Unit
Triage/Ante-Partum/Intra-Partum/Delivery/Recovery/Post-Partum
Pediatric/Neonate
Emergency Department

2. The following departments or services may be required to have licensed nurses employed due to the

nature of the job, but do not require the licensed nurse to deliver nursing care as defined by NIHD:

e Central Sterile Processing

e Infection Control

e Employee Health

e Clinical Informatics

e C(Clinics (Rural Health Clinics, Primary and Specialty Clinics)
¢ District Education

e (Case Management

e Clinics

REFERENCES:

1. The Joint Commission (CAMCAH Manual) January 2022, Nursing Functional Chapter NR 02.01.01

EP 1. Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois.

Departments That Deliver Nursing Care to Patients

Page 38 of 149



RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:

CROSS REFERENCED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:
1. Plan for the Provision of Nursing Care

\ Supersedes: v.2 Departments That Deliver Nursing Care to Patients

Departments That Deliver Nursing Care to Patients

Page 39 of 149



Page 40 of 149



Page 41 of 149



Page 42 of 149



Page 43 of 149



Page 44 of 149



Page 45 of 149



Page 46 of 149



Page 47 of 149



Page 48 of 149



Page 49 of 149



Page 50 of 149



Page 51 of 149



Page 52 of 149



Page 53 of 149



Page 54 of 149



Page 55 of 149



Page 56 of 149



Page 57 of 149



Page 58 of 149



Page 59 of 149



Page 60 of 149



Page 61 of 149



Page 62 of 149



Page 63 of 149



Page 64 of 149



Page 65 of 149



Page 66 of 149



Page 67 of 149



Page 68 of 149



Page 69 of 149



Page 70 of 149



Page 71 of 149



Page 72 of 149



Page 73 of 149



Page 74 of 149



Page 75 of 149



Page 76 of 149



Page 77 of 149



Page 78 of 149



Page 79 of 149



Page 80 of 149



Page 81 of 149



Page 82 of 149



Page 83 of 149



Page 84 of 149



Page 85 of 149



Page 86 of 149



Page 87 of 149



Page 88 of 149



Page 89 of 149



Page 90 of 149



Page 91 of 149



Page 92 of 149



Page 93 of 149



Page 94 of 149



Page 95 of 149



Page 96 of 149



Page 97 of 149



Page 98 of 149



Page 99 of 149



Page 100 of 149



Page 101 of 149



Page 102 of 149



Page 103 of 149



Page 104 of 149



Page 105 of 149



Page 106 of 149



Page 107 of 149



Page 108 of 149



Page 109 of 149



Page 110 of 149



Page 111 of 149



Page 112 of 149



Page 113 of 149



Page 114 of 149



Page 115 of 149



Page 116 of 149



Page 117 of 149



Page 118 of 149



Page 119 of 149



Page 120 of 149



Page 121 of 149



Page 122 of 149



Page 123 of 149



Page 124 of 149



Page 125 of 149



Page 126 of 149



Page 127 of 149



Page 128 of 149



Page 129 of 149



Page 130 of 149



Page 131 of 149



Page 132 of 149



Page 133 of 149



Page 134 of 149



Page 135 of 149



Page 136 of 149



Page 137 of 149



Page 138 of 149



Page 139 of 149



Page 140 of 149



Page 141 of 149



Page 142 of 149



Page 143 of 149



Page 144 of 149



Page 145 of 149



Page 146 of 149



Page 147 of 149



Page 148 of 149



Page 149 of 149



	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Agenda

	Consent Agenda
	Special Meeting Minutes - September 17, 2025
	Regular Meeting Minutes - September 17, 2025
	Special Meeting Minutes - September 29, 2025
	Advance Directives 
	Central Line – Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) Prevention 
	Chemotherapy Administration and Precautions 
	Departments that Deliver Nursing Care to Patients 
	Multidrug Resistance Organism (MDRO) Control Plan
	Prevention of Catheter- Associated Urinary Tract Infections (CAUTIs) 
	Lippincott Procedure Manual Adoption Policy 

	CEO Contract
	CEO Contract

	Board Vacancy - Zone 1
	Memo - Board Vacancy Zone 1

	Chief Executive Officer Report
	Memo - Strategic Growth: Market Survey, Master Facility Plan, and Long-Range Financial Planning
	Strategic Growth 
	Wipfli Facility and Capital Planning Presentation
	Memo - Community Health Needs Assessment Contract

	Chief of Staff Report
	Chief of Staff Report - October 2025

	Governance Committee
	Advocacy Policy
	Civility and Code of Conduct Policy
	Officers and Committees of the Board of Directors - Revised October 13, 2025
	Ticketing Distribution Policy
	Appendix A - Ticketing and Distribution Policy
	Memo - Radiology Services Contract Update

	Chief Financial Officer Report
	Interaction of OHCA Spending Targets and Health Plan Practices
	CFO Report Financial Summary and Operation Insights - August 2025
	NIHD Financial Summary August 2025
	NIHD KPIs FYE August 2025
	NIHD Financial Update August 2025
	NIHD Financial Statements August 2025

	Chief Nursing Officer / Operating Officer Report
	 Memo - Radiology Services Contract Update


